
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
 
To: Members of the Cabinet 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 16 June 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 

Virtual 
 

Please note that due to guidelines imposed on social distancing by the 
Government the meeting will be held virtually. 

 

If you wish to view proceedings please click on this Live Stream Link  
However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting 

Membership 
Councillors 
 

Ian Hudspeth Leader of the Council 

Mrs Judith Heathcoat Deputy Leader 

Lawrie Stratford Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care & Public 
Health 

Steve Harrod Cabinet Member for Children & Family Services 

Ian Corkin Cabinet Member for Council Business & 
Partnerships 

Lorraine Lindsay-Gale Cabinet Member for Education & Cultural Services 

Yvonne Constance OBE Cabinet Member for Environment 

David Bartholomew Cabinet Member for Finance 

Liam Walker Cabinet Member for Highways Delivery & Operations 

Mark Gray Cabinet Member for Local Communities 

 
 

 
Yvonne Rees  
Chief Executive June 2020 
  
Committee Officer: Sue Whitehead 

Tel: 07393 001213; E-Mail: sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
https://oxon.cc/Cabinet16062020


 

 
The Agenda is attached.  Decisions taken at the meeting 

will become effective at the end of the working day on Wednesday 24 June 2020 
unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 

Copies of this Notice, Agenda and supporting papers are circulated 
to all Members of the County Council. 

 
Date of next meeting: 21 July 2020 

 



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 
 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document.  

 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

 - guidance note opposite 
 

 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 20) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2020 (CA3) and to receive 
information arising from them. 

 
 

4. Questions from County Councillors  
 

 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet’s 
delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the 
meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with 
questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item 
will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Membe and shall not be the subject of further 
debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time. 
 

 

5. Petitions and Public Address  
 

This Cabinet meeting will be held virtually in order to conform with current 
guidelines regarding social distancing. Normally requests to speak at this public 
meeting are required by 9 am on the day preceding the published date of the 
meeting. However, during the current situation and to facilitate these new 
arrangements we are asking that requests to speak are submitted by no later than 
9am four working days before the meeting i.e. 9 am on 20 May 2020. Requests to 



- 2 - 
 

 

speak should be sent to sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk together with a 
written statement of your presentation to ensure that if the technology fails then 
your views can still be taken into account. A written copy of your statement can be 
provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before the meeting.  
 
Where a meeting is held virtually and the addressee is unable to participate 
virtually their written submission will be accepted 
.  
Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.  

 

6. Oxfordshire County Council Post COVID Planning: Restart, Recover, 
Renew  

 

 Cabinet Member: Leader 
Forward Plan Ref: 2020/096 
Contact: Claire Taylor, Corporate Director Customers & Organisational Development 
Tel: 07919 367072 
 
Report by Chief Executive (CA6  (to be circulated separately)) 
 
To set out the council’s approach to post covid recovery.  
 

 

7. Forward Plan and Future Business (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

 Cabinet Member: All 
Contact Officer: Sue Whitehead, Committee Services Manager Tel: 07393 001213 
 
The Cabinet Procedure Rules provide that the business of each meeting at the Cabinet 
is to include “updating of the Forward Plan and proposals for business to be conducted 
at the following meeting”.   Items from the Forward Plan for the immediately forthcoming 
meetings of the Cabinet appear in the Schedule at CA7.  This includes any updated 
information relating to the business for those meetings that has already been identified 
for inclusion in the next Forward Plan update. 
 
The Schedule is for noting, but Cabinet Members may also wish to take this opportunity 
to identify any further changes they would wish to be incorporated in the next Forward 
Plan update.  
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the items currently identified for 
forthcoming meetings. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 26 May 2020 commencing at 2.00 pm 
and finishing at 3.21 pm 

 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Ian Hudspeth – in the Chair 
 Councillor Mrs Judith Heathcoat 

Councillor Steve Harrod 
Councillor Ian Corkin 
Councillor Lorraine Lindsay-Gale 
Councillor Yvonne Constance OBE 
Councillor David Bartholomew 
Councillor Liam Walker 
Councillor Mark Gray 
 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 

Councillor Liz Brighouse (Agenda Item 6) 
Councillor Glynis Phillips (Agenda Items 6 & 7) 
Councillor Susanna Pressel (Agenda Item 5) 
Councillor Laura Price (Agenda Item 11) 
Councillor John Sanders (Agenda Item 8) 

  
Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting 
 
 
 
 
Part of Meeting 
Item 
6 
 
8 
 
 
11 
 
 

Yvonne Rees, Chief Executive; Lorna Baxter, Director of 
Finance; Nick Graham, Director of Law & Governance; 
Steve Jorden, Corporate Director of Commercial 
Development Assets and Investment 
 
 
Name 
Robin Rogers, Head of Strategy; Steven Jones, Senior 
Policy Officer 
Paul Feehily, Corporate Director, Place & Growth; Jason 
Russell, Director Community Operations; Joanne 
Fellows, Infrastructure Locality Lead Central 
Karen Edwards, Director Human Resources 

The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda 
tabled at the meeting, and decided as set out below.  Except insofar as otherwise 
specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and 
schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



CA - page 2 
 

 

34/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
(Agenda Item. 1) 

 
An apology was received from Councillor Lawrie Stratford. 
 

35/20 MINUTES  
(Agenda Item. 3) 

 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2020 were approved and 
signed as a correct record subject to an amendment to the third paragraph of 
Minute 27/20 to reflect that the Business Management & Monitoring  report is 
a joint responsibility. Councillor Bartholomew presented the finance element 
as Cabinet Member for Finance and the performance and risk elements of 
the report on behalf of Councillor Heathcoat.  
 

36/20 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda Item. 4) 
 

There were no written questions from County Councillors but in response to 
a question from the Leader of the Council, Lorna Baxter, Director of Finance 
advised that there had been no notification on the Oxfordshire allocation of 
the £250m Active Travel funding from Central Government. 
 

37/20 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda Item. 5) 

 
The Chairman had agreed the following requests to speak: 
 

Item Speaker 

Item 5 – Petitions and Public 
Address 

Petition – Ms McAllister, Jericho 
Connections 

Councillor Susanna Pressel, local 
councillor for Jericho & Osney 

Item 6 – Business Management & 
Monitoring Report 

Dr Liz Sawyer, Oxfordshire Liveable 
Streets 

Councillor Glynis Phillips, Shadow 
Cabinet Member for Finance 

Councillor Liz Brighouse, Chairman of 
Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Item 7 – provisional Capital 
Outturn 

Councillor Glynis Phillips, Shadow 
Cabinet Member for Finance 

 

Item 8 – Better Deal for Bus Users 
– Funding Opportunities 

Councillor John Sanders, Shadow 
Cabinet Member for Environment 

Item 11 – Staffing Report 
Councillor Laura Price, Opposition 
Deputy Leader 

Page 2



CA - page 3 
 

 

Ms McAllister, Jericho Connections submitted a petition with 671 electronic 
signatures and a further 252 paper signatures, requesting that Oxfordshire 
County Council carries out due diligence by re-opening Walton Street for 6 
months whilst baseline data is collected prior to a formal consultation. Ms 
McAllister commented that Jericho Connections did not disagree with the 
aims of the Council to improve air quality, improve conditions for cyclists and 
pedestrians, and to reduce congestion and rat-running. However, they 
disagreed with the way in which OCC had gone about shutting Walton 
Street. They believed that baseline data had not been collected prior to the 
closure to provide comparison and that the closure failed to address the 
stated aims. 
 
Councillor Pressel, local councillor for Jericho & Osney, spoke on the closure 
to Walton Street. Whilst recognising the difficulties experienced by local 
traders and the inconvenience to some local residents commented that most 
local people were delighted by the improvement to air quality and the quieter 
streets. Councillor Pressel hoped that officers would work with local people 
to make Walton Street a “Low Traffic Neighbourhood”. She noted that in 
other areas outside Oxfordshire this had led to footfall in local businesses 
going up and vacancies in retail premises falling. The measures to ease 
congestion for cyclists were particularly important at the current time in view 
of the need for social distancing but were also essential for the safety of local 
residents going forward. 
 
In response Councillor Hudspeth, Leader of the Council, indicated that the 
Council would work with the community to get the right result for the area. 
Councillor Constance, Cabinet Member for Environment (Including 
Transport) acknowledged the contributions of both speakers which illustrated 
the challenge of reaching the best decision in the interests of everyone..   
 
RESOLVED:  The petition was received and referred to the Director 
Community Operations. 
 
 

38/20 BUSINESS MANAGEMENT & MONITORING REPORT - MARCH 
2020  
(Agenda Item. 6) 

 
Cabinet considered a report that set out Oxfordshire County Council's 
(OCC's) progress towards Corporate Plan priorities and provided an update 
on the delivery of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, at 31 March 2020. A 
summary of overall performance and description of change is contained 
within the report. The report additionally provided a note of the expected 
costs and loss of income expected relating to Covid-19 in the first quarter of 
2020/21. 
 
Dr Liz Sawyers, speaking on behalf of Oxfordshire Liveable Streets, spoke 
on the challenges presented by the end of lockdown. She referred to 
government advice to avoid public transport and to drive where walking and 

Page 3



CA - page 4 
 

cycling were not possible. The upswing in private car usage would present a 
challenge. Dr Sawyers commented that the Council had the power to protect 
Oxford business and futures by creating an environment that put people first 
by protecting public space for social distancing and protecting air quality to 
prevent exacerbating the impact of covid-19. Dr Sawyers urged the bringing 
forward of a ‘plus’ version of Connecting Oxford so that it was in place by 1 
July. Dr Sawyers added that the ‘Plus’ version was only two bus gates away 
from the original agreed at Cabinet on 21 January 2020.  
 
Whilst commending the work being undertaken and recognising the 
pressures the Council were under, Dr Sawyers further urged the Council to 
work closely with Oxford City and the District Councils to provide public 
space for city business to restart; to fast track ‘liveable neighbourhood 
schemes’ and to commit to segregated and continuous cycle lanes along the 
City’s main arterial routes. 
 
Councillor Glynis Phillips, Shadow Cabinet Member for Finance began by 
thanking staff for going above and beyond their day to day duties: not just all 
those frontline staff but also other staff still answering casework queries by 
councillors. 
 
Councillor Phillips commented that she understood there was agreement to 
move the information about the process of writing the report into a separate 
annex. 
 
Referring to paragraph 6, which advised of the return to quarterly reporting 
Councillor Phillips commented that she would welcome a streamlined, 
slimmed down report just focussing on key issues on a monthly basis. For 
good governance there was a need to maintain a monthly focus in order to 
understand how the Council’s response to the virus is impacting on Council 
services and finance. She commended Annex D as an excellent summary of 
the effects thus far. 
 
Referring to the risk LR8 at page 21 Councillor Phillips suggested that this be 
increased to reflect the interim appointment of a non-legally trained 
Monitoring Officer. The appointment had been made unanimously at Council, 
but it was right to be aware of the increased risk of issues not being identified 
because of a lack of legal training. She suggested that a timetable for the 
appointment of a Director of Legal Services, or the appointment of an 
existing solicitor into the interim position would mitigate the risk. 
 
Councillor Phillips also sought assurances on the following: firstly whether 
the Council was contemplating using the Care Act easements which are part 
of the Coronavirus Act 2020; secondly how the Council responded to the 
question in the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
about the impact if a council was forced to use reserves including those 
specifically earmarked for particular projects to cover the impact of additional 
spending and finally whether the Council was in danger of issuing a Section 
114 notice.. 
 

Page 4



CA - page 5 
 

 
Councillor Judith Heathcoat, Deputy Leader of the Council, indicated that 
monthly reporting would resume from the start of Quarter 2. Quarter 1 would 
be reported to the September Cabinet meeting. Councillor David 
Bartholomew, Cabinet Member for Finance added that in terms of finance 
there would be monthly reporting from July Cabinet. 
 
With regard to the Interim Monitoring position Councillor Heathcoat replied 
that there was full legal support for the Interim Monitoring Officer position.  
  
Councillor Heathcoat added that Councillor Phillips would receive a written 
answer on her query on the use of Care Act easements. 
 
Councillor Bartholomew responding to the point raised about the use of 
reserves stated that the question from government was on deployable 
reserves and so earmarked reserves were not available and that was the 
response to government. In terms of general balances, a figure of £4.8m was 
deployable as identified in the final accounts. 
 
Councillor Bartholomew responding to the question on a S114 Notice stated 
that the key point was that the government had committed to meeting local 
authority needs and costs related to coronavirus. The County Council had 
sufficient reserves and balances to manage cashflow so there was no 
question of an S114 Notice being issued at the moment. 
 
Councillor Liz Brighouse, speaking as Labour Group and Opposition Leader 
thanked all staff for the work they were doing during this awful time. 
 
As Chairman of the Performance Scrutiny Committee Councillor Brighouse 
referred to ongoing work by the Committee on delayed discharges of care 
and looked forward to work currently being undertaken on this aspect of the 
response to the coronavirus coming to the Committee.  
 
Councillor Brighouse noted that the Committee had also considered the 
attainment gap in education. Many of those struggling most were children 
who should have been in school during lockdown but failed to attend. 
Despite valiant efforts by school staff to support the children and families, 
including the provision of foodbanks there were vulnerable children that 
should be in school who were not. She hoped that so as not to increase the 
attainment gap children, entitled to be in school would return before 
consideration was given to specific year groups returning which may have an 
impact on families with several children in one school, would impact on staff 
support to vulnerable children at home and virtual learning for Years 2 – 5. 
Councillor Brighouse hoped that these points would be made to central 
government before they stretch our schools further. 
 
Councillor Brighouse referred to assurances made to her that there would be 
a performance report to the July meeting of the Committee. If not, there 
would have been no scrutiny in 2020 and it was important to have scrutiny by 
ordinary members of the council. Councillor Heathcoat confirmed that 

Page 5



CA - page 6 
 

monthly reporting would begin from the second quarter. She recognised the 
frustration at the situation and understood that officers were meeting with 
Councillor Brighouse to determine what it would be possible to bring. 
However, it was necessary to acknowledge the workload pressures and use 
of staff resources at this time. 
 
 
Councillor Heathcoat added her thanks to staff to those already expressed. 
Councillor Heathcoat introduced the performance and risk elements of the 
report. She gave a snapshot of the performance stories within the report, 
including: 
 

 97% of the councillor priority fund(£1.87m) had been spent on projects 
supporting local communities. 

 Adult Social care and Public health had met or exceeded most public 
health targets. 

 90% of children had been given their first preference of primary school. 

 OFRS continued to exceed their response targets and targets for 
supporting  vulnerable residents. 

 
Councillor Heathcoat explained that the targets for reablement and delayed 
discharge of care both rated as grey. This was because reporting on these 
had been suspended as part of the coronavirus response by the council and 
government. 
 
Councillor Bartholomew, introduced the finance elements of the report noting 
that it included information on the provisional revenue outturn for 2019/20 
along with the year-end position on general balances and earmarked 
reserves. In response to a question from Councillor Hudspeth on the use of 
general balances for government to address the impact of coronavirus 
Councillor Bartholomew confirmed that it was about deployable reserves but 
that further information was awaited. 
 
During discussion Councillor Liam Walker, Cabinet Member for Highways 
Operations and Delivery paid tribute to the work of the Highways Teams 
during this time. The work made more difficult due the social distancing 
requirements. 110miles of roads had been resurfaced including on the A40 
and 6506 potholes had been dealt with. This reflected the decision to invest 
more in our road network and he would continue to ensure the money was 
spent wisely. 
 
RESOLVED:   to: 
 
(a)  note the contents of this report; 
(b)  note the virements set out in Annex C – 2b; 
(c)  note the provisional revenue outturn for 2019/20 along with the 

yearend position on general balances and earmarked reserves as 
set out in Annex C; 

(d)  approve the remaining directorate overspend £0.3m after using the 
unused corporate contingency should be transferred to balances 

Page 6



CA - page 7 
 

along with the Strategic Measures underspend of £2.8m as set out in 
paragraph 29; 

(e)  agree that the surplus on the On-Street Parking Account at the end 
of the 2019/20 financial year, so far as not applied to particular 
eligible purposes in accordance with Section 55(4) of the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, be carried forward in the account to the 
2020/21 financial year as set out in Annex C-4; 

(f)  To note the expected costs and loss of income expected relating to 
Covid-19 in the first quarter of 2020/21 as set out in Annex D. 

 
 

39/20 PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN 2019/20  
(Agenda Item. 7) 

 
Cabinet had before them a report on the provisional capital programme 
outturn position for the 2019/20 financial year that focused on the capital 
spending against budget allocations within 2019/20 and the financing of this 
capital investment. 
 
Councillor Glynis Phillips, Shadow Cabinet Member for Finance commented 
that it was unusual see an underspent budget and highlighted that the 
majority of the underspend was because of shortfalls in meeting the Housing 
& Growth Deal programme and OxLEP related schemes.  She referred to 
confidence expressed in the report that the later years of the Housing & 
Growth deal would see a significant increase in spend levels and queried on 
what that confidence was based. In particular as the delivery of this 
programme rested with the districts Councillor Phillips questioned  why there 
was a belief that house building numbers would increase in future years. 
 
Councillor Phillips went on to query the slippage in the Highways Asset 
Management Plan most of which related to the Street Lighting LED 
Replacement Programme. She queried whether actions outlined in previous 
reports to provide additional capacity were in place in order to deliver 
within the original timeframe? This was important not just because of the 
financial savings but because of the reduced carbon emissions from LED 
streetlights. 
 
Councillor Phillips sought an example of the type of works referred to in 
relation to the slippage on a number of bridge works to allow delivery of 
emerging higher priority schemes.  
 
On  broad band provision in paragraph 24 of the report Councillor Phillips 
found it shocking to read that there was no spend on the Businesses in Rural 
Oxfordshire Programme in the last financial year and queried whether this 
had been a conscious decision. 
  
In relation to Paragraph  27 of the report on slippage against the original 
programme relating to Fire Protective Equipment and the additional 
capitalisation on Fire and Rescue replacement services Councillor Phillips 

Page 7



CA - page 8 
 

expressed worry that savings had been made on Fire Protective Equipment 
and sought more detail.  
 
As the local member Councillor Phillips queried when the school in 
Barton Park, was to be opened. 
 
Finally, Councillor Phillips highlighted paragraph 4 of the report advising that 
previous reports had reflected expected programme spend as opposed to 
individually agreed schemes which explained why the expected programme 
spend of £218.5m is an over estimate. She asked that future reports make it 
clear which schemes are expected programme spend and which are agreed 
programme spend? This would explain any differences in the year 
end position. 
 
Councillor Bartholomew, moved the recommendations. 
 
Cabinet Members responded to the points raised: 
 

 Councillor Corkin, Cabinet Member for Council Business & Partnerships, 
on the Businesses in Rural Oxfordshire Programme advised that this was 
fully external funding and that it had taken time to get the governance in 
place. There were two selected suppliers, the programme was up and 
running and on track to finish by June 2021.They were confident of 
meeting the expected targets and the only unknown was the impact of 
coronavirus. 

 Councillor Lindsay-Gale, Cabinet member for Education & Cultural 
Services confirmed that Barton Park School would be ready to open in 
September 2020. 

 Councillor Heathcoat, Deputy Leader of the Council referring to the query 
on protective equipment explained that economies of scale had been 
possible through Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire and Berks joining together 
in their purchasing. Councillor Heathcoat gave an assurance that there 
was sufficient fire protection equipment for OFRS needs. 

 Councillor Walker, Cabinet Member for Highways Operations and 
Delivery, indicated that on street lighting they were in the process of 
sourcing an additional contractor and that energy saving schemes would 
be prioritised. 

 Councillor Constance responded to specific questions relating to the 
Growth Deal and slippage on the Highways Asset Management Scheme 

 
RESOLVED:   to note the provisional capital outturn for 2019/20 as set 
out in the report. 
 

40/20 BETTER DEAL FOR BUS USERS - FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES  
(Agenda Item. 8) 

 
Cabinet had before them a report detailing two new funds for the provision of 
bus services under the heading of ‘Better Deal for Bus Users’, to provide an 
update on the financial support available to bus operators as a result of the 

Page 8



CA - page 9 
 

impact of Covid-19 along with updating members on other funding 
opportunities to support public transport. 
 
Councillor John Sanders, Shadow Cabinet member for Environment noted 
that the council would be asking for funding for 4 expressions of 
interest for rural services funding. He expressed his happiness with this 
because rural services had been badly hit by government cuts. However, he 
queried whether this would be balanced by the "All-electric funding initiative" 
that would improve air quality in the city and major towns? 
 
Councillor Sanders queried what plans were in place to mitigate the effect of 
Covid-19 on bus use and the government's suggestion that commuters 
should consider private car journeys in preference to public transport? 
 
Councillor Constance, Cabinet Member for Environment (including 
Transport) responded to the points made by Councillor Sanders, 
acknowledging the need to plan for the current impacts of coronavirus but to 
plan beyond that for the aspiration to reduce private car use. There were two 
parts to the bid and both were equally important. 
 
In introducing the report Councillor Constance stated that in the last few days 
officers had been made aware of technical information relating to the way in 
which costs have been apportioned by the bus operators that could affect the 
bid for Oxford to become the UK’s first all-electric bus city.  Any increase in 
the funding required to convert the city’s bus fleet would influence the DfT’s 
affordability criteria and the potential success of the Bid.  
 
Officers were working closely with the bus operators to address this as 
quickly as possible although it may be after the deadline for the submission 
of the Expression of Interest on June 4th. While it was believed there may be 
a positive solution in time for submission of the EoI to be made on 4 June, if 
not, (and as the report indicated), should affordability become an issue as 
the business case developed requiring us to withdraw the EoI then Cabinet 
would receive a further report at that time.  
 
Councillor Gray, Cabinet Member for Local Communities in supporting the 
bid as a strong supporter of direct response transport expressed concern 
over the long term funding of the project. He referred to the Pick Me UP 
service that was to end at the end of June.  
 
RESOLVED:   to agree for Officers to  

 
(a) submit an Expression of Interest to the Government’s ‘All-Electric Bus 

City’ funding initiative; and 
(b) submit up to four Expressions of Interest to the Government’s Rural 

Mobility Funding initiative. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



CA - page 10 
 

41/20 APPOINTMENTS 2020/21  
(Agenda Item. 9) 

 
Cabinet considered member appointments to a variety of bodies which in 
different ways support the discharge of the Council’s Executive function. 
 
Councillor Hudspeth, Leader of the Council, highlighted the following 
appointments to fill vacancies set out in the annex. 
 
Adoption & Permanency Panels – Councillor Hillary Hibbert-Biles 
Member Champion for Veterans– Councillor Hillary Hibbert-Biles  
 
RESOLVED:   to confirm the existing appointments with the above 
change as set out in the Annex to these minutes. 
 

42/20 FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS  
(Agenda Item. 10) 

 
The Cabinet considered a list of items for the immediately forthcoming 
meetings of the Cabinet.  

 
RESOLVED:  to note the items currently identified for forthcoming 
meetings. 
 

43/20 WORKFORCE REPORT AND STAFFING DATA - QUARTER 4 - 
JANUARY - MARCH 2020  
(Agenda Item. 11) 

 
Cabinet considered a report that provided a summary of HR activity and a 
snapshot of the workforce profile including headcount and full time equivalent 
comparison, ethnicity, age, apprenticeships, sickness, turnover and agency 
spend for the quarter ending 31 March 2020. 
 
Councillor Laura Price, Opposition Deputy Leader paid tribute to our staff 
across all directorates for their phenomenal work during this period of crisis. 
 
Councillor Price also thanked the HR team and their exemplary work 
alongside Oxfordshire's Trade Unions and in particular County Unison and 
the wonderful Janie. 
 
Councillor Price commented that the report began to illustrate the impact of 
Covid on our workforce, but also showed how staff and HR have combined 
emergency response with ongoing work and service redesign vital to our 
ability to operate. It will now be important to find ways to build back stronger 
from our experiences. The effectiveness of the new Occupational Health 
contract and Employee Assistance Programme will be key. There was still 
work to do in the area of sickness absence  and she hoped that this 
challenge formed part of the criteria for the commissioning process. 
 
Councillor Price welcomed the increased focus on leavers' data and in 
particular the recognised need for more rigour in the exit interview process.  

Page 10



CA - page 11 
 

Councillor Price expressed concern that the Council still relied heavily on 
agency staff in key areas where an increase in permanent staff would have 
significant benefits for residents - such as social workers. 
 
She looked forward to the next Quarter that would paint a picture of our 
organisation as we move out of the peak and into the "new normal" which is 
likely to bring even more complex challenges.It would be necessary to learn 
and grow particularly in how to nurture the health and wellbeing of staff and 
enable them to work more flexibly - not only in times of crisis, but periods of 
stability. 
 
Councillor Judith Heathcoat, Deputy Leader of the Council, introduced the 
contents of the report stressing that the services provided by the Council 
were people intensive and that the workforce were our most valuable asset. 
Councillor Heathcoat thanked Karen Edwards and the HR Team for the 
richness of the report, working effectively from home. Councillor Heathcoat 
highlighted that the retendering of the occupational health and the employee 
assistance services was completed and would enable the Council to support 
a healthy workforce. Services offered included counselling, debt and legal 
advice and health and wellbeing support. Councillor Heathcoat detailed the 
analytical work that was taking place particularly on sickness absence figures 
and that work was ongoing looking at the HR data set. More detail was 
available on the web site. 
 
RESOLVED:  to note the report. 
 
 

44/20 VOTE OF THANKS 
 
Councillor Hudspeth, Leader of the Council, noted that it was Nick Graham’s 
last meeting at Cabinet, and he thanked him for his efforts over the years 
and that he had enjoyed working with him. Cabinet associated themselves 
with the vote of thanks. 
 

 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPOINTMENTS SCHEDULE      ANNEX  
 

Joint Committees 

 

Joint Committee 

Frequency 
of 

meetings 
(FOM) 

Places Appointees for 2019/20 

Thames Valley Fire Control 
Service 

 2 Deputy Leader 
Cabinet Member for Local Communities 

Traffic Penalty Tribunal -  
Outside London 
Adjudication Committee 
 

quarterly 1 Cabinet Member for the Environment  

Growth Board  1 Leader (Deputy Leader as named substitute) 

Thames Valley 
Collaboration Group 

 1 Deputy Leader 

Didcot Garden Town Board quarterly 1 Councillor Ian Hudspeth 

 

Joint Partnership Working 
Group 

 
5 Councillors Ian Hudspeth, Ted Fenton, Jeannette 

Matelot, Liz Brighouse and Liz Leffman  

 
Joint Committee Sub-Groups 

 

Sub-Group  Places  
Basis of  
Member 

Appointment  

Con Ind 
Alliance 

Lab 

Lib  Ind 

Dem  

Oxfordshire 
Growth 
Board 
Scrutiny 
Panel 

3 

On the 
nomination of the 
political groups 
according to 
political balance: 
 

 

1 
Carter 

 
1 

John 
Sanders 

 
1 

Richard 
Webber 

 

OGB JSSP 
Sub Group  

 

Appointment 
nominated by the 
Leader of the 
Council 

1 
Fox-Davies 
(Matelot as 

Sub) 

   

OGB 
Infrastructure 
Sub-Group 

1 

Appointment 
nominated by the 
Leader of the 
Council 

1 
Constance 

   

OGB 
Housing 
Sub-Group  

 

Appointment 
nominated by the 
Leader of the 
Council 

 
(Constance 

as Sub) 

1 
Brighouse 

  

 
 Page 13



SECTION 2 
Local Statutory Bodies 
 

Statutory 
Body  

FOM Places  
Basis of  
Member 

Appointment  

Con Ind 
Alliance 

Lab Lib Dem Ind 

Adoption & 
Permanency 
Panels & 
Fostering 
Panels  
 

 
 
 
 
 
3 per month 
 
 
 
2 per month 
(occasionally 
3 per month 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

2 

On the nomination 
of the political 
groups according to 
political balance: 
 
Adoption & 
Permanency  
 
 
 
Fostering  
 

 
 
 

 
 

2 
Cllr Mrs 
Fitzgerald 
O’Connor 
Cllr 
Hibbert-
Biles 

 

1 
 

Cllr Bulmer 

 

 

 

1 

Cllr Begum 
Azad 

 
 

1 
 

Cllr Gill 
Sanders 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

Standing 
Advisory 
Council for 
Religious 
Education 
(SACRE)  
 

 3  On the nomination 
of the political 
groups according to 
political balance 

1 

Cllr 
Mathew 

1 

Cllr Phillips 

1 

Cllr Bob 
Johnston 

0 

 

Page 14



SECTION 3 

Strategic Partnerships 
 

Partnership FOM Appointees for 2019/20 

Oxfordshire Partnership Board 

 

2 per 
annum 

Leader of the Council 

Thematic Partnerships: 
 
 
Health & Well Being Board 
 
 
 
 
Children’s Trust Board 
 
 
 
 
Health Improvement 
Partnership Board 
 
 
Better Care Fund Joint 
Management Group 
 
 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership 
 
 
Safer Oxfordshire Partnership 
 
 
Oxfordshire Stronger 
Communities Alliance 
 
 
Oxfordshire Environmental 
Partnership 
 
 
Skanska Strategic Partnership 
Board 
 
Viridor Strategic Partnership 
Board 

 

 
3 per 
annum 
 
 
 
3 per 
annum 
 
 
 
3 per 
annum 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4 per 
annum 
 
3 per 
annum 
 
 
4 per 
annum 
 
 
4 per 
annum 
 
 
4 per 
annum 
 
annually 

 

 
Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members 
responsible for Adult Social Care, Public Health & 
Children’s & Family Services 
 
 
Cabinet Member for Children & Family Services 
Cabinet Member for Education & Cultural 
Services* 
Cabinet member for Adult Social Care 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care & Public 
Health 
 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care & Public 
Health 
 
 
Councillor Ian Hudspeth 
 
 
Councillor Kieron Mallon in his role as 
representative on the Thames Valley Police & 
Crime Panel. 
 
Cabinet Member for Local Communities 
 
 
 
Cabinet Member for Environment 
 
 
 
Cabinet Member for Highways Delivery & 
Operations and Leader 
 
Cabinet Member for Environment 
 

Page 15



SECTION 4 

Standing Advisory Bodies 

Body  FOM Places    Basis of  
Member 

Appointment  

Con Ind 
Alliance 

Lab Lib 
Dem 

Ind 

Music House 
Committee / 
Music 
Education 
Hub 
(Partnership) 
for 
Oxfordshire 
 

3 per 
annum 

3  On the 
nomination of 
the political 
groups 
according to 
political balance 

2 
Cllr Waine 

Cllr 
Lindsay-

Gale 

1 

Cllr 
Phillips 

 

0 0 

Outdoor 
Centres 
House 
Committee 
(under 
review) 
 

 3  On the 
nomination of 
the political 
groups 
according to 
political balance 
 

2 
 

Cllr Waine 
Vacancy 

1 

Cllr Lygo 

0 0 

Schools 
Organisation 
Stakeholder 
Group  
(includes 
former 
Oxfordshire 
School 
Forum) 

quarterly 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 
observer 
(with no 
voting 
rights) 

Non-executive 
County Council 
Members 

On the 
nomination of 
the political 
groups 
according to 
political balance 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Education & 
Cultural 
Services 

3 
Cllr Waine 

Cllr Mrs 
Fitzgerald-
O’Connor 

Cllr Matelot 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr 
Lindsay-

Gale 

1 

Cllr 
Brighouse 

 

1 
Cllr 

Howson 

 

 

Young 
People’s 
Well-Being 
Group 

2 5  5 non-executive 
councillors on 
the nomination 
of the political 
groups 
according to 
political 
balance, to 
reflect as far as 
possible the 
geographic 

3 
 

Cllr Mrs 
Fitzgerald-
O’Connor 

 
Cllr 

Mathew 
 

Cllr 
Handley 

 
 
 

1 

Cllr 
Turnbull  

1 

Cllr 
Emily 
Smith 

0 

Page 16



areas of the 
county; 

 

the Cabinet 
Member with 
responsibility 
for Children and 
Young People 
(ex officio) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Harrod 

Joint Parking 
project 
Group 

monthly 2 2 councillors on 
the nomination 
of the political 
group 

1 

Constance 

1 

John 
Sanders 

  

Page 17



SECTION 5 

Informal Member/Officer Working Groups 

 

 

 

 

Working 
Group 

 

FOM Place
s 

Basis of  
Appointment  

Con Ind 
Alliance 

Lab Lib Dem Ind 

Corporate 
Parenting 
Panel 

 

4 per 
annum 

11  On the nomination 
of the political 
groups according 
to political 
balance, to 
include the 
Cabinet Member 
for Children & 
Family Services 
and the three 
members serving 
on the Fostering & 
Adoption Panels 

Director for 
Children’s 
Services, and 
Director for Adult 
Services or 
nominees 

6 
Cllr Waine 

Cllr Mrs 
Fitzgerald 
O’Connor 

Cllr Billington 
Cllr Bulmer 
Cllr Harrod 
Cllr Gray 

3 
3 of Cllr Gill 

Sanders, Cllr 
Lygo, Cllr 
McIlveen 
and Cllr 

Begum Azad 

2 
Cllr Roberts 

vacancy 

0 

 

Oxfordshire 
County 
Council 
South Africa 
Link Group 
 

2/3 per 
annum 

4 On the nomination 
of the political 
groups according 
to political balance 

2 
Cllr Harrod 

Cllr 
Thompson 

1 

Cllr 
Brighouse 

1 
D. Turner 

0 

Minority 
Ethnic 
Consultative 
Forum.  

 3  1 

Cllr Gray 

1 

Cllr Afridi 

1 

Cllr Buckley 

 

West End 
Steering 
Group 

 

as 
required 

2  
Leader of the 
Council and 
Deputy Leader or  
representative 

2 
Hudspeth 
Heathcoat 

 0 0 

Page 18



Member Champions 

Cycling: Councillor Bartington 
 
Mental Health & Loneliness:  Councillor Stratford 
 
Military: Councillor Dr Simon Clarke acts as Armed Forces Champion on behalf of the 
county, then each military base has a champion who acts as a point of contact: 

 

Base   OCC Champion 

Bicester Garrison  Councillor Sames 

RAF Brize Norton Councillor Handley 

Abingdon Station Councillor Webber 

Shrivenham Defence Academy Councillor Constance 

Vauxhall Barracks Councillor Clarke 

RAF Benson Councillor Clarke (interim) 

 

Veterans: Councillor Hibbert-Biles 

 

Cabinet Advisory Groups: 
 
Minerals and Waste Cabinet Advisory Group: 
Councillors: Constance (Chair), Fenton. Gray, Johnston, Lindsay-Gale, Mathew, John 
Sanders and Webber 

 
Transport Cabinet Advisory Group 
Councillors: Constance (Chair), Fenton, Fox-Davies, Johnston, Matelot, Reynolds, 
Roberts, John Sanders and Walker 

Climate Change 

Councillors: Constance (Chair), Fox-Davies, Haywood, Howson, Reeves, John 
Sanders and Walker 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



SECTION 6 

Strategic Outside Body 

FOM OCC 

Entitlement 
Appointees 
for 2017/18 

County Councils Network  
(CCN) 
 

Council - 
 2 per annum 
Executive –  
 3 per annum 
Annual 
conference 

4 county 
councillors 
 

Hudspeth 

Lindsay-Gale 

Heathcoat 

Corkin 

 

Local Government 
Association  
(LGA) 
 

General 
Assembly -1 per 
annum 

4 county 
councillors  
(* to cast 
additional OCC 
vote) 
 

Hudspeth* 

Corkin 

Heathcoat 

Lindsay-Gale 

 

Oxfordshire Association of 
Local Councils 
 

as required 1 county 
councillor 

Matelot 

Oxfordshire Care 
Partnership Board 
 

as required 1 county 
councillor 

Stratford 

Oxfordshire Countryside 
Access Forum 
 

2/3 per annum 1 county 
councillor 

Vacancy 

Community First 
Oxfordshire (formerly 
Oxfordshire Rural 
Community Council) 
 

as required 1 county 
councillor 

Walker 

 
 
 

Page 20



Division(s): N/A 

 
CABINET – 16 JUNE 2020 

 

FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS 
 

Items identified from the Forward Plan for Forthcoming Decision 
 

Topic/Decision Portfolio/Ref 
 

Cabinet, 21 July 2020 
 
 Delegated Powers - July 2020 
To report on a quarterly basis any executive decisions taken 
under the specific powers and functions delegated under the 
terms of Part 7.1 (Scheme of Delegation to Officers) of the 
Council’s Constitution – Paragraph 6.3(c)(i).  It is not for Scrutiny 
call-in. 
 

Cabinet, Leader 
2020/029 

 Housing Infrastructure Fund - A40 (HIF2) 
To seek delegation of the finalising and signing of the agreement 
with Homes England/MHCLG. 
 

Cabinet, 
Environment 
2020/059 

 Bicester Junction Improvements 
To seek agreement to receive and spend funding related to 
Garden Town from Cherwell District Council. 
 

Cabinet, 
Environment 
2020/060 

 Didcot Garden Town Housing Infrastructure Fund 
Consultation on the Preferred Option 

To seek approval of the alignment for HIF1 infrastructure. 
 

Cabinet, 
Environment 
2020/043 

 Treasury Management 2019/20 Outturn 
To review Treasury Management activity in 2019/20 in 
accordance with the CIPFA code of practice. 
 

Cabinet, Finance 
2020/027 

 Financial Monitoring Report - July 2020 
To note and seek agreement of the report. 
 

Cabinet, Finance 
2020/091 

 
 

Cabinet Member for Environment, 16 July 2020 
 
 North Hinksey: North Hinksey Lane and Lime Road - 

Proposed Waiting Restrictions 
To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2019/133 

 Faringdon: A417 Park Road - Proposed Puffin 
Crossing 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/038 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



CA 
 
 
 Abingdon: Boulter Drive and Loyd Close - Proposed 

Waiting Restrictions 
To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/025 

 Didcot: Great Western Park - Proposed Bus Gate 
To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/011 
 

 Oxford: Walton Street - Proposed Experimental 
Closure 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2019/185 

 Long Wittenham: Didcot Road - Proposed Zebra 
Crossing and Revised Traffic Calming 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/008 

 Bloxham: A361 and Bloxham Grove Road - Proposed 
Extension of 30mph Speed Limit 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/032 

 Carterton/Shilton: B4020 - Proposed Extension of 
30mph Speed Limit and Traffic Calming Measures 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/037 

 Forest Hill: A40 Laybys - Proposed Closure 
To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/047 
 

 Banbury: Springfield Avenue and Easington Road - 
Proposed Environmental Weight Limit and Traffic 
Calming 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/057 

 Cherwell and West Oxfordshire: Various Locations - 
Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2019/189 

 Banbury: A361 South of Banbury - Proposed 
Prohibition of Motor Vehicles on Section of Road 
Superseded by New Road Layout 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/069 

 Bletchingdon: B4027 Station Road - Proposed 
Extension of 30mph Speed Limit 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/070 

 Cumnor: Cumnor Hill and Side Roads - Proposed 
30mph Speed Limit 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/072 

Page 22



CA 
 
 
 Nuneham Courtenay: A4074 - Proposed Extension of 

30mph Speed Limit 
To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/073 

 Sutton Courtenay: B4016 Appleford Road - Proposed 
Extension of 30mph Speed Limit 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/074 

 West Oxfordshire: Astall, Charlbury and Minster 
Lovell - Proposed Structural Weight Limits 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/075 

 Oxford: Various Controlled Parking Zones - Proposed 
Exclusion of Eligibility for Parking Permits 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/080 

 Infrastructure Security Bond Policy 
To seek agreement of the changes to the policy and implications 
on securing infrastructure. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/085 

 Oxford: Godstow Road - Proposed Traffic Calming 
Measures 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/086 

 Chesterton - Alchester Road - Proposed Waiting 
Restrictions 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/087 

 Oxford: City Centre - Various Locations - Proposed 
Additional Cycle Parking Places 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/020 

 Sutton Courtenay: Milton Road - Proposed 
Conversion of Footway to Shared Use Footway/Cycle 
Track 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/088 

 Bicester: Browning Drive - Proposed Waiting 
Restrictions 

To seek approval of the proposals. 
 

Cabinet Member 
for Environment, 
2020/090 

 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	CA_MAY2620R13 Appointments Annex 2019-20, 26/05/2020 Cabinet

	7 Forward Plan and Future Business

